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This material is authorized for use only when preceded or accompanied by the current PIMCO Variable Insurance Trust (the “Trust”) prospectus for the
Portfolio. (The variable product prospectus may be obtained by contacting your Investment Consultant.)

Chairman’s Letter

Dear PIMCO Variable Insurance Trust Shareholder,
Please find enclosed the Semiannual Report for the PIMCO Variable Insurance Trust covering the six-month reporting
period ended June 30, 2017. The following pages contain specific details about the Portfolio’s investment
performance and a discussion of the factors that most affected performance over the reporting period.
Highlights of the financial markets during the six-month fiscal reporting period include:
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䡲

Through early 2017, the robust risk sentiment that marked the post-U.S. election period broadly continued,
though there were some signs of moderation towards the end of March. Early challenges in President Donald
Trump’s policy agenda left some investors less optimistic about the potential for other highly anticipated agenda
items such as tax reform and infrastructure spending. Still, solid fundamental data, relatively easy financial
conditions, and optimism among businesses and consumers helped encourage positive investor sentiment. This
environment provided an opportunity for the Federal Reserve (“Fed”) to continue on its path towards policy
normalization, and led the Fed to raise its key lending rate, the Federal Funds Rate, again in March by 0.25% to
a range of 0.75% to 1.00%.

䡲

Geopolitics, including elections in several countries as well as political controversy in both the U.S. and Brazil,
dominated headlines and contributed to brief periods of market volatility throughout the last quarter of the
reporting period. In the U.S., the Fed raised the Federal Funds Rate once again in June by 0.25% to a range of
1.00% to 1.25%, and unveiled details of its plan to gradually unwind its balance sheet, contributing to a
flattening yield curve. A perceived hawkish shift in tone from other major central banks, including the European
Central Bank, the Bank of England, and the Bank of Canada, spurred most developed market yields to rise even
as longer-term interest rates actually fell in the U.S. The fundamental economic backdrop remained largely intact
and the broader risk rally continued as equities marched higher, credit spreads tightened, and emerging market
(“EM”) assets strengthened.

䡲

U.S. Treasuries, as represented by the Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Treasury Index, returned 1.87% for the reporting
period. Yields rose at the short-end of the U.S. Treasury yield curve through three-year maturities, but declined
across the longer-term portion of U.S. Treasury yield curve as the Fed continued its tightening monetary policy.
The benchmark ten-year U.S. Treasury note yielded 2.31% at the end of the reporting period, down from 2.45%
on December 31, 2016. The Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index, a widely used index of U.S. investmentgrade bonds, returned 2.27% for the reporting period.

䡲

U.S. Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (“TIPS”), as represented by the Bloomberg Barclays U.S. TIPS Index,
returned 0.85% over the reporting period. The upward pressure on U.S. real interest rates experienced after the
U.S. election moderated during the first part of 2017, as questions arose about the feasibility and timing of the
new administration’s proposed policies. Real yields in the U.S. resumed their upward trajectory in the last quarter
of the reporting period, particularly in June, as the Fed raised rates for the fourth time in this cycle and
announced detailed plans to reduce its balance sheet by tapering reinvestments. Inflation expectations dipped
lower over the period on the back of persistent oil weakness and three consecutive soft Consumer Price Index
(“CPI”) releases during the second quarter.

䡲

Diversified commodities, as represented by the Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return, declined 5.26% over
the reporting period. Within energy, oil prices dipped lower as production out of non-OPEC countries increased,
elevating uncertainty that OPEC may succeed in rebalancing the oil market. Natural gas saw pressure from a
warm U.S. winter; and continued to underperform in the second quarter of the reporting period due to
unfavorable weather and higher U.S. inventories. Within precious metals, gold rallied on lower real yields over
the first quarter of the reporting period, but ended slightly down driven by higher U.S. real yields at the end of
the reporting period. Within agriculture, wheat outperformed on poor crop quality and production uncertainty.

PIMCO VARIABLE INSURANCE TRUST

䡲

Agency mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”), as represented by the Bloomberg Barclays U.S. MBS Fixed Rate
Index, returned 1.35% over the reporting period and underperformed like-duration U.S. Treasuries amid
headwinds from heavy supply and concerns regarding the unwinding of the Fed’s balance sheet. Non-Agency
MBS prices were higher and spreads tightened, as the sector continued to benefit from favorable technicals and
stable fundamentals.

䡲

U.S. investment grade credit, as represented by the Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Credit Index, returned 3.68% over
the reporting period, alongside falling credit yields, a relatively stable global growth environment, low volatility
and strength in equity markets. Developed market global high yield bonds, as measured by the BofA Merrill
Lynch Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index (USD Hedged), returned 5.02% over the reporting
period. Performance was strong and reflected meaningfully less dispersion across sectors, given the improving
stability of commodities.

䡲

EM external debt, as represented by the JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index (EMBI) Global, returned 6.20%
over the reporting period. EM local bonds, as represented by the JPMorgan Government Bond Index-Emerging
Markets Global Diversified Index (Unhedged), returned 10.36% over the reporting period. The economic
slowdown in China continued, though policymakers have placed a premium on near-term stability ahead of the
19th National Congress of the Communist Party of China scheduled to take place this autumn, effectively
reducing the rate of depreciation for the Chinese Yuan. EM currencies broadly appreciated against the U.S.
dollar, remaining resilient in the face of lower commodity prices and more hawkish rhetoric from developed
market central banks.

䡲

Global equity markets generally posted positive returns on strong investor risk appetite amid a period marked by
low economic volatility and strong corporate earnings growth despite geopolitical uncertainty during the
reporting period. U.S. equities, as represented by the S&P 500 Index, returned 9.34% over the reporting period.
Developed market equities outside the US, as represented by the MSCI EAFE Net Dividend Index (USD Hedged),
returned 8.27% and the MSCI EAFE Net Dividend Index (USD Unhedged), returned 13.81% over the reporting
period. EM equities, as represented by the MSCI Emerging Markets Index (Net Dividends in USD), returned
18.43% over the same period.

Thank you again, for the trust you place in us. We value your commitment and will continue to work diligently to meet
your broad investment and investment solution needs.

Sincerely,

Brent R. Harris
Chairman of the Board,
PIMCO Variable Insurance Trust
August 22, 2017

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Unless otherwise noted, index returns reflect the reinvestment of income distributions and
capital gains, if any, but do not reflect fees, brokerage commissions or other expenses of investing. It is not possible to invest directly in an
unmanaged index.
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Important Information About the PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
PIMCO Variable Insurance Trust (the “Trust”) is an open-end
management investment company that includes the PIMCO All Asset
All Authority Portfolio (the “Portfolio”). The Portfolio is only available
as a funding vehicle under variable life insurance policies or variable
annuity contracts issued by insurance companies (“Variable
Contracts”). Individuals may not purchase shares of the Portfolio
directly. Shares of the Portfolio also may be sold to qualified pension
and retirement plans outside of the separate account context.
The Portfolio is a “fund of funds,” which is a term used to describe mutual
funds that pursue their investment objective by investing in other mutual
funds instead of investing directly in stocks or bonds of other issuers. Under
normal circumstances, the Portfolio invests substantially all of its assets in
Institutional Class or, as applicable, Class M shares of any funds of the
PIMCO Funds and PIMCO Equity Series, affiliated open-end investment
companies, except funds of funds, and shares of any actively-managed
funds of the PIMCO ETF Trust, an affiliated investment company
(collectively, “Underlying PIMCO Funds”). The cost of investing in these
Funds will generally be higher than the cost of investing in a mutual fund
that invests directly in individual stocks and bonds.
In an environment where interest rates may trend upward, rising rates
would negatively impact the performance of most bond funds, and
fixed income securities and other instruments held by the Portfolio are
likely to decrease in value. A wide variety of factors can cause interest
rates to rise (e.g., central bank monetary policies, inflation rates,
general economic conditions, etc.). In addition, changes in interest
rates can be sudden and unpredictable, and there is no guarantee that
management will anticipate such movement accurately. The Portfolio
may lose money as a result of movements in interest rates.
As of the date of this report, interest rates in the U.S. and many parts
of the world, including certain European countries, are at or near
historically low levels. As such, bond funds may currently face an
increased exposure to the risks associated with a rising interest rate
environment. This is especially true as the Fed ended its quantitative
easing program in October 2014 and has begun, and may continue, to
raise interest rates. To the extent the Fed continues to raise interest
rates, there is a risk that rates across the financial system may rise.
Further, while bond markets have steadily grown over the past three
decades, dealer inventories of corporate bonds are near historic lows in
relation to market size. As a result, there has been a significant
reduction in the ability of dealers to “make markets.”
Bond funds and individual bonds with a longer duration (a measure used
to determine the sensitivity of a security’s price to changes in interest
rates) tend to be more sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually
making them more volatile than securities or funds with shorter
durations. All of the factors mentioned above, individually or collectively,
could lead to increased volatility and/or lower liquidity in the fixed income
markets, or negatively impact the Portfolio’s performance or cause the
Portfolio to incur losses. As a result, the Portfolio may experience
increased shareholder redemptions, which among other things, could
further reduce the net assets of the Portfolio.
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The Portfolio may be subject to various risks as described in the
Portfolio’s prospectus. Some of these risks may include, but are not
limited to the following: new/small portfolio risk, allocation risk, fund
of funds risk, market trading risk, municipal project-specific risk,
municipal bond risk, interest rate risk, call risk, credit risk, high yield
risk, distressed company risk, market risk, issuer risk, liquidity risk,
derivatives risk, futures contract risk, model risk, commodity risk, equity
risk, mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities risk, foreign
(non-U.S.) investment risk, real estate risk, emerging markets risk,
sovereign debt risk, currency risk, issuer non-diversification risk,
leveraging risk, smaller company risk, management risk, short sale risk,
tax risk, subsidiary risk, value investing risk, arbitrage risk and
convertible securities risk. A complete description of these and other
risks is contained in the Portfolio’s prospectus.
An Underlying PIMCO Fund may use derivative instruments for hedging
purposes or as part of an investment strategy. Use of these instruments
may involve certain costs and risks such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
market risk, credit risk, leverage risk, management risk and the risk that the
Underlying PIMCO Fund may not be able to close out a position when it
would be most advantageous to do so. Changes in regulation relating to a
mutual fund’s use of derivatives and related instruments could potentially
limit or impact the Portfolio’s ability to invest in derivatives, limit the
Portfolio’s ability to employ certain strategies that use derivatives and/or
adversely affect the value or performance of derivatives and the Portfolio.
Certain derivative transactions may have a leveraging effect on an
Underlying PIMCO Fund. For example, a small investment in a derivative
instrument may have a significant impact on an Underlying PIMCO Fund’s
exposure to interest rates, currency exchange rates or other investments.
As a result, a relatively small price movement in an asset, instrument or
component of the index underlying a derivative instrument may cause an
immediate and substantial loss or gain in the Underlying PIMCO Fund,
which translates into heightened volatility for the Portfolio. An Underlying
PIMCO Fund may engage in such transactions regardless of whether the
Underlying PIMCO Fund owns the asset, instrument or components of the
index underlying the derivative instrument. An Underlying PIMCO Fund
may invest a significant portion of its assets in these types of instruments. If
it does, the Underlying PIMCO Fund’s investment exposure could far
exceed the value of its portfolio securities and its investment performance
could be primarily dependent upon securities it does not own. An
Underlying PIMCO Fund’s investment in foreign (non-U.S.) securities may
entail risk due to foreign (non-U.S.) economic and political developments;
this risk may be increased when investing in emerging markets. For
example, if an Underlying PIMCO Fund invests in emerging market debt, it
may face increased exposure to interest rate, liquidity, volatility, and
redemption risk due to the specific economic, political, geographical, or
legal background of the foreign (non-U.S.) issuer.
High yield bonds typically have a lower credit rating than other bonds.
Lower-rated bonds generally involve a greater risk to principal than
higher-rated bonds. Further, markets for lower-rated bonds are typically
less liquid than for higher-rated bonds, and public information is usually
less abundant in markets for lower-rated bonds. Thus, high yield
investments increase the chance that the Portfolio will lose money.

The credit quality of a particular security or group of securities does not
ensure the stability or safety of the overall portfolio. Mortgage-related and
asset-backed securities represent interests in “pools” of mortgages or other
assets such as consumer loans or receivables. As a general matter,
mortgage-related and asset-backed securities are subject to interest rate
risk, extension risk, prepayment risk, and credit risk. These risks largely stem
from the fact that returns on mortgage-related and asset-backed securities
depend on the ability of the underlying assets to generate cash flow.
The geographical classification of foreign (non-U.S.) securities in this
report are classified by the country of incorporation of a holding. In
certain instances, a security’s country of incorporation may be different
from its country of economic exposure.
On the Portfolio Summary page in this Shareholder Report, the Average
Annual Total Return table and Cumulative Returns chart measure
performance assuming that any dividend and capital gain distributions

were reinvested. The Cumulative Returns chart reflects only
Administrative Class performance. Performance may vary by share class
based on each class’s expense ratios. The Portfolio measures its
performance against at least one broad-based securities market index
(“benchmark index”). The benchmark index does not take into account
fees, expenses, or taxes. The Portfolio’s past performance, before and
after taxes, is not necessarily an indication of how the Portfolio will
perform in the future. There is no assurance that the Portfolio, even if the
Portfolio has experienced high or unusual performance for one or more
periods, will experience similar levels of performance in the future. High
performance is defined as a significant increase in either 1) the Portfolio’s
total return in excess of that of the Portfolio’s benchmark between
reporting periods or 2) the Portfolio’s total return in excess of the
Portfolio’s historical returns between reporting periods. Unusual
performance is defined as a significant change in the Portfolio’s
performance as compared to one or more previous reporting periods.

The following table discloses the inception dates of the Portfolio and its respective share classes along with the Portfolio’s diversification status as of
period end:
Portfolio Name
PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio

Portfolio
Inception

Institutional
Class

Class M

Administrative
Class

Advisor
Class

Diversification
Status

04/30/14

04/30/14

—

04/30/14

04/30/14

Diversified

An investment in the Portfolio is not a bank deposit and is not
guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”) or any other government agency. It is possible to lose money
on investments in the Portfolio.

except in circumstances in which shareholder approval is specifically
required by law (such as changes to fundamental investment policies)
or where a shareholder approval requirement is specifically disclosed in
the Trust’s then-current prospectus or SAI.

The Trustees are responsible generally for overseeing the management
of the Trust. The Trustees authorize the Trust to enter into service
agreements with the Adviser, the Distributor, the Administrator and
other service providers in order to provide, and in some cases authorize
service providers to procure through other parties, necessary or
desirable services on behalf of the Trust and the Portfolio. Shareholders
are not parties to or third-party beneficiaries of such service
agreements. Neither this Portfolio’s prospectus nor summary
prospectus, the Trust’s Statement of Additional Information (“SAI”),
any contracts filed as exhibits to the Trust’s registration statement, nor
any other communications, disclosure documents or regulatory filings
(including this report) from or on behalf of the Trust or the Portfolio
creates a contract between or among any shareholder of the Portfolio,
on the one hand, and the Trust, the Portfolio, a service provider to the
Trust or the Portfolio, and/or the Trustees or officers of the Trust, on
the other hand. The Trustees (or the Trust and its officers, service
providers or other delegates acting under authority of the Trustees)
may amend the most recent prospectus or use a new prospectus,
summary prospectus or SAI with respect to the Portfolio or the Trust,
and/or amend, file and/or issue any other communications, disclosure
documents or regulatory filings, and may amend or enter into any
contracts to which the Trust or the Portfolio is a party, and interpret the
investment objective(s), policies, restrictions and contractual provisions
applicable to the Portfolio, without shareholder input or approval,

PIMCO has adopted written proxy voting policies and procedures
(“Proxy Policy”) as required by Rule 206(4)-6 under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. The Proxy Policy has been adopted
by the Trust as the policies and procedures that PIMCO will use when
voting proxies on behalf of the Portfolio. A description of the policies
and procedures that PIMCO uses to vote proxies relating to portfolio
securities of the Portfolio, and information about how the Portfolio
voted proxies relating to portfolio securities held during the most recent
twelve-month period ended June 30, are available without charge,
upon request, by calling the Trust at (888) 87-PIMCO, on the
Portfolio’s website at www.pimco.com/pvit, and on the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) website at www.sec.gov.
The Trust files a complete schedule of the Portfolio’s holdings with the
SEC for the first and third quarters of each fiscal year on Form N-Q. A
copy of the Portfolio’s Form N-Q is available on the SEC’s website at
www.sec.gov and may be reviewed and copied at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room in Washington, D.C. A copy of the Portfolio’s
Form N-Q is also is available without charge, upon request, by calling
the Trust at (888) 87-PIMCO and on the Portfolio’s website at
www.pimco.com/pvit. Information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room may be obtained by calling 1-800-SEC-0330.
The Trust is distributed by PIMCO Investments LLC, 1633 Broadway,
New York, New York 10019.
SEMIANNUAL REPORT JUNE 30, 2017
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PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
Cumulative Returns Through June 30, 2017
$15.0

Top 10 Holdings
as of 06/30/20171§

(in thousands)
INDEX

$13,758
SECONDARY
INDEX

$12,562

10.0

ADMINISTRATIVE
CLASS

$9,954

5.0

0
04/14

11/15

06/17

$10,000 invested at the end of the month when the Portfolio’s Administrative Class
commenced operations.

Investment Objective and Strategy Overviews

PIMCO StocksPLUS®
Short Fund

18.8%

PIMCO Emerging Markets
Currency Fund

9.3%

PIMCO RAE Low Volatility
PLUS EMG Fund

7.0%

PIMCO Income Fund

5.7%

PIMCO Emerging Local
Bond Fund

5.2%

PIMCO RAE Low Volatility
PLUS International Fund

3.9%

PIMCO RAE Fundamental
PLUS International Fund

3.8%

PIMCO RAE Fundamental
PLUS EMG Fund

3.8%

PIMCO Senior Floating
Rate Fund

3.6%

CommoditiesPLUS®

PIMCO
Strategy Fund

3.6%

1

% of Investments, at value.

§

Top 10 Holdings and % of
Investments exclude securities sold
short, financial derivative instruments
and short-term instruments, if any.

Average Annual Total Return for the period ended June 30, 2017
6 Months*

1 Year

Inception≈

PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio Institutional Class

5.95%

9.44%

(0.00)%

PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio Administrative Class

5.88%

9.26%

(0.14)%

9.18%

(0.25)%

PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio Advisor Class

5.85%

S&P 500 Index±

9.34%

Consumer Price Index + 650 Basis Points±±

3.59%

17.90% 10.59%♦
8.15%

7.46%♦

All Portfolio returns are net of fees and expenses.
* Cumulative return.
≈ For class inception dates please refer to the Important information.
♦

Average annual total return since 04/30/2014.

S&P 500 Index is an unmanaged market index generally considered representative of the stock market as a whole. The Index
focuses on the large-cap segment of the U.S. equities market.
±

CPI + 650 Basis Points benchmark is created by adding 6.5% to the annual percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
(“CPI”). This index reflects seasonally adjusted returns. The Consumer Price Index is an unmanaged index representing the rate
of inflation of the U.S. consumer prices as determined by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. There can be no guarantee that the
CPI or other indexes will reflect the exact level of inflation at any given time.
±±

It is not possible to invest directly in an unmanaged index.

Performance quoted represents past performance. Past performance is not a guarantee or a reliable indicator of future results.
Current performance may be lower or higher than performance shown. Investment return and the principal value of an investment
will fluctuate. Shares may be worth more or less than original cost when redeemed. The Portfolio’s performance does not reflect
the deduction of additional charges and expenses imposed in connection with investing in Variable Contracts, which will reduce
returns. Differences in the Portfolio’s performance versus the index and related attribution information with respect to particular
categories of securities or individual positions may be attributable, in part, to differences in the pricing methodologies used by the
Portfolio and the index. For performance current to the most recent month-end, visit www.pimco.com/pvit or call (888) 87-PIMCO.
The Portfolio’s total annual operating expense ratio as stated in the Portfolio’s current prospectus, which includes the Acquired
Fund Fees and Expenses (Underlying PIMCO Fund Expenses), as supplemented, is 2.10% for Institutional Class shares, 2.25% for
Administrative Class shares, and 2.35% for Advisor Class shares. Details regarding any Portfolio’s operating expenses can be
found in the Portfolio’s prospectus.
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PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio seeks
maximum real return, consistent with
preservation of real capital and prudent
investment management. The Portfolio invests its
assets in shares of other PIMCO funds
(“Underlying PIMCO Funds”) and does not invest
directly in stocks or bonds of other issuers.
Research Affiliates, LLC, the Portfolio’s asset
allocation sub-adviser, determines how the
Portfolio allocates and reallocates its assets
among the Underlying PIMCO Funds. In doing
so, the asset allocation sub-adviser seeks
concurrent exposure to a broad spectrum of asset
classes. In addition to investing in the Underlying
PIMCO Funds, at the discretion of PIMCO and
without shareholder approval, the Portfolio may
invest in additional Underlying PIMCO Funds
created in the future. Portfolio strategies may
change from time to time. Please refer to the
Portfolio’s current prospectus for more
information regarding the Portfolio’s strategy.
Portfolio Insights
The following affected performance during the
reporting period:
» Exposure to emerging market equities,
primarily through the PIMCO RAE Low
Volatility PLUS EMG Fund, the PIMCO RAE
Fundamental PLUS EMG Fund and the PIMCO
RAE Fundamental Emerging Markets Fund,
benefited performance, as these underlying
PIMCO funds gained value.
» Exposure to emerging market bonds and
currencies, primarily through the PIMCO
Emerging Markets Currency Fund and the
PIMCO Emerging Local Bond Fund, benefited
performance, as these underlying PIMCO
funds gained value.
» Exposure to developed market ex-U.S.
equities, primarily through the PIMCO Low
Volatility PLUS International Fund, the PIMCO
Fundamental PLUS International Fund and the
PIMCO StocksPLUS® International Fund (U.S.
Dollar-Hedged), benefited performance, as
these underlying PIMCO funds gained value.
» Credit exposure, primarily through the PIMCO
Income Fund, the PIMCO High Yield Spectrum
Fund and the PIMCO High Yield Fund,
benefited performance, as these underlying
PIMCO funds gained value.
» Allocations to U.S. long-maturity bonds,
primarily through the PIMCO Long-Term U.S.
Government Fund and the PIMCO Extended
Duration Fund, benefited performance, as
these underlying PIMCO funds gained value.
» Allocations to U.S. core bonds, primarily
through the PIMCO Total Return Fund and
the PIMCO Investment Grade Corporate Bond
Fund, benefited performance, as these
underlying PIMCO funds gained value.
» Inverse exposure to the S&P 500 Index,
achieved through the PIMCO StocksPLUS®
Short Fund, detracted from performance, as
this underlying PIMCO fund posted negative
returns during the reporting period.
» Commodities exposure, primarily through the
PIMCO CommoditiesPLUS® Strategy Fund,
detracted from performance, as this underlying
PIMCO fund posted negative returns.

Expense Example PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
Example
As a shareholder of the Portfolio, you incur two types of costs: (1) transaction costs and (2) ongoing costs, including management fees, distribution
and/or service (12b-1) fees (if applicable), and other Portfolio expenses. The Example is intended to help you understand your ongoing costs (in
dollars) of investing in the Portfolio and to compare these costs with the ongoing costs of investing in other mutual funds.
The Expense Example does not reflect any fees or other expenses imposed by the Variable Contracts. If it did, the expenses reflected in the Expense
Example would be higher. The Example is based on an investment of $1,000 invested at the beginning of the period and held from January 1, 2017
to June 30, 2017 unless noted otherwise in the table and footnotes below.

Actual Expenses
The information in the table under the heading “Actual” provides information about actual account values and actual expenses. You may use the
information in these rows, together with the amount you invested, to estimate the expenses that you paid over the period. Simply divide your
account value by $1,000 (for example, an $8,600 account value divided by $1,000 = 8.60), then multiply the result by the number in the
appropriate row for your share class, in the column titled “Expenses Paid During Period” to estimate the expenses you paid on your account during
this period.

Hypothetical Example for Comparison Purposes
The information in the table under the heading “Hypothetical (5% return before expenses)” provides information about hypothetical account values
and hypothetical expenses based on the Portfolio’s actual expense ratio and an assumed rate of return of 5% per year before expenses, which is not
the Portfolio’s actual return. The hypothetical account values and expenses may not be used to estimate the actual ending account balance or
expenses you paid for the period. You may use this information to compare the ongoing costs of investing in the Portfolio and other portfolios. To
do so, compare this 5% hypothetical example with the 5% hypothetical examples that appear in the shareholder reports of the other portfolios.
Please note that the expenses shown in the table are meant to highlight your ongoing costs only and do not reflect any transactional costs.
Therefore, the information under the heading “Hypothetical (5% return before expenses)” is useful in comparing ongoing costs only, and will not
help you determine the relative total costs of owning different portfolios. In addition, if these transactional costs were included, your costs would
have been higher.
Expense ratios may vary period to period because of various factors, such as an increase in expenses that are not covered by the management fees
such as fees and expenses of the independent trustees and their counsel, extraordinary expenses and interest expense.
Hypothetical
(5% return before expenses)

Actual

Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class

Beginning
Account Value
(01/01/17)

Ending
Account Value
(06/30/17)

Expenses Paid
During Period*

Beginning
Account Value
(01/01/17)

Ending
Account Value
(06/30/17)

Expenses Paid
During Period*

$ 1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00

$ 1,059.50
1,058.80
1,058.50

$ 6.33
7.10
7.60

$ 1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00

$ 1,018.65
1,017.90
1,017.41

$ 6.21
6.95
7.45

Net Annualized
Expense Ratio**

1.24%
1.39
1.49

* Expenses Paid During Period are equal to the net annualized expense ratio for the class, multiplied by the average account value over the period, multiplied by 181/366 (to reflect the
one-half year period). Overall fees and expenses of investing in the Portfolio will be higher because the example does not reflect variable contract fees and expenses.
** Net Annualized Expense Ratio is reflective of any applicable contractual fee waivers and/or expense reimbursements or voluntary fee waivers. Details regarding fee waivers, if any, can
be found in Note 8, Fees and Expenses, in the Notes to Financial Statements.
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Financial Highlights PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
Investment Operations

Selected Per Share Data for the Year or Period Ended:

Institutional Class
01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017+
12/31/2016
12/31/2015
04/30/2014 - 12/31/2014
Administrative Class
01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017+
12/31/2016
12/31/2015
04/30/2014 - 12/31/2014
Advisor Class
01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017+
12/31/2016
12/31/2015
04/30/2014 - 12/31/2014

Net Asset
Value
Beginning
of Year
or Period

Net
Investment
Income (Loss)(a)

Net
Realized/
Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

$ 8.42
7.65
9.02
10.00

$ 0.14
0.19
0.38
0.64

8.44
7.65
9.02
10.00
8.41
7.64
9.01
10.00

Less Distributions(b)

Total

From Net
Investment
Income

From Net
Realized
Capital
Gain (Loss)

Tax Basis
Return of
Capital

Total

$ 0.36
0.85
(1.47)
(1.19)

$ 0.50
1.04
(1.09)
(0.55)

$ (0.15)
(0.27)
(0.26)
(0.42)

$ 0.00
0.00
(0.02)
(0.01)

$ 0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

$ (0.15)
(0.27)
(0.28)
(0.43)

0.19
0.14
0.31
0.44

0.31
0.90
(1.41)
(1.00)

0.50
1.04
(1.10)
(0.56)

(0.15)
(0.25)
(0.25)
(0.41)

0.00
0.00
(0.02)
(0.01)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

(0.15)
(0.25)
(0.27)
(0.42)

0.16
0.18
0.35
0.56

0.33
0.84
(1.46)
(1.13)

0.49
1.02
(1.11)
(0.57)

(0.14)
(0.25)
(0.24)
(0.41)

0.00
0.00
(0.02)
(0.01)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

(0.14)
(0.25)
(0.26)
(0.42)

+ Unaudited
* Annualized
(a) Per share amounts based on average number of shares outstanding during the year or period.
(b) The tax characterization of distributions is determined in accordance with federal income tax regulations. The actual tax characterization of distributions paid is determined at the end
of the fiscal year. See Note 2, Distributions to Shareholders, in the Notes to Financial Statements for more information.
(c) Ratios shown do not include expenses of the investment companies in which a Fund may invest. See Note 8, Fees and Expenses, in the Notes to Financial Statements for more
information regarding the expenses and any applicable fee waivers associated with these investments.
(d) Ratio of expenses to average net assets includes line of credit expenses.
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See Accompanying Notes

Ratios/Supplemental Data
Ratios to Average Net Assets(c)
Net Asset
Value End of
Year or
Period

$ 8.77
8.42
7.65
9.02

Total Return

5.95%
13.78
(12.17)
(5.57)

Net Assets
End of
Year or
Period (000s)

$

622
892
884
583

Expenses

Expenses
Excluding
Waivers

Expenses
Excluding
Interest
Expense

Expenses
Excluding
Interest
Expense and
Waivers

Net
Investment
Income (Loss)

Portfolio
Turnover
Rate

1.24%*(d)
0.91(d)
1.30(d)
0.81*(d)

1.29%*(d)
0.99(d)
1.39(d)
1.15*(d)

0.50%*
0.37
0.36
0.37*

0.55%*
0.45
0.45
0.71*

3.34%*
2.29
4.45
9.79*

32%
151
67
117

8.79
8.44
7.65
9.02

5.88
13.73
(12.35)
(5.70)

4,244
1,966
4,594
7,338

1.39*(d)
1.06(d)
1.45(d)
0.96*(d)

1.44*(d)
1.14(d)
1.54(d)
1.30*(d)

0.65*
0.52
0.51
0.52*

0.70*
0.60
0.60
0.86*

4.26*
1.79
3.57
6.61*

32
151
67
117

8.76
8.41
7.64
9.01

5.85
13.55
(12.40)
(5.76)

7,143
6,959
4,099
3,588

1.49*(d)
1.16(d)
1.55(d)
1.06*(d)

1.54*(d)
1.24(d)
1.64(d)
1.40*(d)

0.75*
0.62
0.61
0.62*

0.80*
0.70
0.70
0.96*

3.72*
2.22
4.11
8.48*

32
151
67
117

See Accompanying Notes

SEMIANNUAL REPORT JUNE 30, 2017

9

Statement of Assets and Liabilities PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)
June 30, 2017

Assets:
Investments, at value
Investments in Affiliates
Cash
Dividends receivable from Affiliates
Prepaid expenses
Total Assets

$ 16,751
14
24
8
16,797

Liabilities:
Borrowings & Other Financing Transactions
Payable for line of credit
Payable for investments in Affiliates purchased
Payable for Portfolio shares redeemed
Accrued investment advisory fees
Accrued supervisory and administrative fees
Accrued distribution fees
Total Liabilities

$ 4,750
26
6
2
2
2
4,788

Net Assets

$ 12,009

Net Assets Consist of:
Paid in capital
Undistributed (overdistributed) net investment income
Accumulated undistributed net realized gain (loss)
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation)

$ 13,558
65
(1,886)
272

Net Assets

$ 12,009

Net Assets:
Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class

$

Shares Issued and Outstanding:
Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class
Net Asset Value Per Share Outstanding:
Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class
Cost of investments in Affiliates
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622
4,244
7,143

71
483
815

$

8.77
8.79
8.76

$ 16,479

See Accompanying Notes

Statement of Operations PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
(Amounts in thousands)

Investment Income:
Dividends from Investments in Affiliates
Total Income
Expenses:
Investment advisory fees
Supervisory and administrative fees
Servicing fees - Administrative Class
Distribution and/or servicing fees - Advisor Class
Interest expense
Extraordinary legal expense
Miscellaneous expense
Total Expenses
Waiver and/or Reimbursement by PIMCO
Net Expenses

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

$ 296
296

11
14
2
9
42
5
1
84
(3)
81

Net Investment Income (Loss)

215

Net Realized Gain (Loss):
Investments in Affiliates

(42)

Net Realized Gain (Loss)

(42)

Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation):
Investments in Affiliates

449

Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation)

407

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets Resulting from Operations

See Accompanying Notes

$ 622
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
(Amounts in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

Year Ended
December 31, 2016

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets from:
Operations:
Net investment income (loss)
Net realized gain (loss)
Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation)

$

215
(42)
449

$

215
(1,070)
2,092

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets Resulting from Operations

622

1,237

Distributions to Shareholders:
From net investment income
Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class

(12)
(64)
(111)

(30)
(91)
(177)

Total Distributions(a)

(187)

(298)

Portfolio Share Transactions:
Net increase (decrease) resulting from Portfolio share transactions**

1,757

(699)

Total Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

2,192

240

Net Assets:
Beginning of period
End of period*

9,817
$ 12,009

9,577
$ 9,817

* Including undistributed (overdistributed) net investment income of:

$

$

65

37

A zero balance may reflect rounding to less than one thousand.
** See Note 12, Shares of Beneficial Interest in the Notes to Financial Statements.
(a) The tax characterization of distributions is determined in accordance with federal income tax regulations. The actual tax characterization of distributions paid is determined at the end
of the fiscal year. See Note 2, Distributions to Shareholders, in the Notes to Financial Statements for more information.
†
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See Accompanying Notes

Statement of Cash Flows PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2017

(Amounts in thousands†)

Cash Flows Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations

$ 622

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets from Operations to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Purchases of long-term securities
Proceeds from sales of long-term securities
(Purchases) Proceeds from sales of short-term portfolio investments, net
(Increase) decrease in receivable for Affiliates sold
(Increase) decrease in dividends receivable from Affiliates
Increase (decrease) in payable for Affiliates purchased
Net Realized (Gain) Loss
Investments in Affiliates
Net Change in Unrealized (Appreciation) Depreciation
Investments in Affiliates

(7,378)
4,900
(38)
45
(2)
(37)
42
(449)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

(2,295)

Cash Flows Received from (Used for) Financing Activities:
Proceeds from shares sold
Payments on shares redeemed
Increase (decrease) in overdraft due to custodian
Net borrowing of line of credit
Cash distributions paid*

3,336
(1,766)
(11)
750
0

Net Cash Received from (Used for) Financing Activities

2,309

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Foreign Currency

14

Cash and Foreign Currency:
Beginning of period
End of period

$

* Reinvestment of distributions

$ 187

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest expense paid during the period

$

†

0
14

38

A zero balance may reflect actual amounts rounding to less than one thousand.

A Statement of Cash Flows is presented when the Portfolio had a significant amount of borrowing during the period, based on the average total
borrowing outstanding in relation to total assets or when substantially all of the Portfolio’s investments were not classified as Level 1 or 2 in the fair
value hierarchy.

See Accompanying Notes

SEMIANNUAL REPORT JUNE 30, 2017

13

Schedule of Investments PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio
SHARES

MARKET
VALUE
(000S)

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES 139.5%
MUTUAL FUNDS (a) 139.2%
PIMCO CommoditiesPLUS®
Strategy Fund
106,063 $
598
PIMCO CommodityRealReturn
18,614
121
Strategy Fund®
PIMCO Credit Absolute Return Fund
2,591
26
PIMCO Diversified Income Fund
5,862
64
PIMCO Emerging Local Bond Fund
116,809
875
PIMCO Emerging Markets
Currency Fund
169,716
1,555
PIMCO Extended Duration Fund
38,072
300
PIMCO High Yield Fund
19,548
176
PIMCO High Yield Spectrum Fund
42,867
430
PIMCO Income Fund
77,513
957
PIMCO Investment Grade Corporate
Bond Fund
23,828
251
PIMCO Long Duration Total
Return Fund
12,760
141
PIMCO Long-Term U.S.
Government Fund
70,059
434
PIMCO Low Duration Fund
43,071
424
PIMCO Mortgage
Opportunities Fund
9,527
106

MARKET
VALUE
(000S)

SHARES

PIMCO RAE Fundamental
Advantage PLUS Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental Emerging
Markets Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental
International Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental PLUS
EMG Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental PLUS
International Fund
PIMCO RAE Low Volatility PLUS
EMG Fund
PIMCO RAE Low Volatility
PLUS Fund
PIMCO RAE Low Volatility PLUS
International Fund
PIMCO RAE Worldwide Long/Short
PLUS Fund
PIMCO Real Return Asset Fund
PIMCO Real Return Fund
PIMCO RealEstateRealReturn
Strategy Fund
PIMCO Senior Floating Rate Fund
PIMCO StocksPLUS® International
Fund (U.S. Dollar-Hedged)

June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

14,496 $

145

52,154

565

3,558

36

62,700

633

68,284

642

122,834

1,175

11,818

149

MARKET
VALUE
(000S)

SHARES

PIMCO StocksPLUS® International
Fund (Unhedged)
PIMCO StocksPLUS® Short Fund
PIMCO Total Return Fund
PIMCO TRENDS Managed Futures
Strategy Fund

28,141 $
338,368
51,034
3,572

Total Mutual Funds (Cost $16,441)

186
3,143
522
33
16,713

SHORT-TERM INSTRUMENTS 0.3%
MUTUAL FUNDS 0.3%

61,104

652

34,070
7,105
28,056

339
58
307

71,389
60,888

590
605

58,327

475

PIMCO Government Money
Market Fund (a)

38,004

38

Total Short-Term Instruments
(Cost $38)

38

Total Investments in Affiliates
(Cost $16,479)

16,751

Total Investments 139.5%
(Cost $16,479)

$ 16,751

Other Assets and Liabilities, net (39.5)%
Net Assets 100.0%

(4,742)
$ 12,009

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS*):
* A zero balance may reflect actual amounts rounding to less than one thousand.
(a) Institutional Class Shares of each Fund.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of June 30, 2017 in valuing the Portfolio’s assets and liabilities:

Category and Subcategory

Investments in Affiliates, at Value
Mutual Funds
Short-Term Instruments
Central Funds Used for Cash Management Purposes
Total Investments

Level 1

$

$

Fair
Value at
Level 2 Level 3 06/30/2017

16,713 $

0

38

0

16,751 $

0

$

0 $
0

$

0 $

16,713
38
16,751

There were no significant transfers among Levels 1, 2, or 3 during the period ended June 30, 2017.
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Notes to Financial Statements
1. ORGANIZATION
PIMCO Variable Insurance Trust (the “Trust”) was established as a
Delaware business trust on October 3, 1997. The Trust is registered
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Act”),
as an open-end management investment company. The Trust is
designed to be used as an investment vehicle by separate accounts of
insurance companies that fund variable annuity contracts and variable
life insurance policies and by qualified pension and retirement plans.
Information presented in these financial statements pertains to the
Institutional Class, Administrative Class and Advisor Class shares of the
PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio (the “Portfolio”) offered by the
Trust. Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (“PIMCO”) serves
as the investment adviser (the “Adviser”) for the Portfolio. Research
Affiliates, LLC (“Research Affiliates”) serves as the asset allocation subadviser to the Portfolio.
The Portfolio may invest in Institutional Class or Class M shares of any
funds of the PIMCO Funds and PIMCO Equity Series, affiliated openend investment companies, except other funds of funds, and shares of
any actively-managed funds of the PIMCO ETF Trust, an affiliated
investment company (collectively “Underlying PIMCO Funds”). The
Portfolio’s investment in a particular Underlying PIMCO Fund normally
will not exceed 50% of its total assets. The Portfolio’s investments in
the Short Strategy Underlying PIMCO Funds (as set forth in the
Portfolio’s current prospectus), which seek to gain a negative exposure
to an asset class such as equities or commodities, normally will not
exceed 20% of its total assets. The Portfolio’s combined investments in
the Domestic Equity-Related Underlying PIMCO Funds (as set forth in
the Portfolio’s current prospectus) will not exceed 50% of its total
assets. In addition, the Portfolio’s combined investments in InflationRelated Underlying PIMCO Funds (as set forth in the Portfolio’s current
prospectus), which seek to gain exposure to an asset class such as U.S.
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (“TIPS”), commodities, or real
estate, normally will not exceed 75% of its total assets.
The Portfolio’s assets are not allocated according to a predetermined
blend of shares of the Underlying PIMCO Funds. Instead, when making
allocation decisions among the Underlying PIMCO Funds, the Portfolio’s
asset allocation sub-adviser considers various quantitative and qualitative
data relating to the U.S. and foreign economies and securities markets.
Such data includes projected growth trends in the U.S. and foreign
economies, forecasts for interest rates and the relationship between
short- and long-term interest rates (yield curve), current and projected
trends in inflation, relative valuation levels in the equity and fixed income
markets and various segments within those markets, the outlook and
projected growth of various industrial sectors, information relating to
business cycles, borrowing needs and the cost of capital, political trends
data relating to trade balances and labor information. The Portfolio’s

June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

asset allocation sub-adviser has the flexibility to reallocate the Portfolio’s
assets among any or all of the asset class exposures represented by the
Underlying PIMCO Funds based on its ongoing analyses of the equity,
fixed income and commodity markets. While these analyses are
performed daily, material shifts in asset class exposures typically take
place over longer periods of time.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following is a summary of significant accounting policies
consistently followed by the Portfolio in the preparation of its financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The Portfolio is treated
as an investment company under the reporting requirements of U.S.
GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S.
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of increases and decreases in net assets
from operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
(a) Securities Transactions and Investment Income Securities
transactions are recorded as of the trade date for financial reporting
purposes. Securities purchased or sold on a when-issued or delayeddelivery basis may be settled beyond a standard settlement period for
the security after the trade date. Realized gains (losses) from securities
sold are recorded on the identified cost basis. Dividend income is
recorded on the ex-dividend date, except certain dividends from foreign
securities where the ex-dividend date may have passed, which are
recorded as soon as the Portfolio is informed of the ex-dividend date.
Interest income, adjusted for the accretion of discounts and
amortization of premiums, is recorded on the accrual basis from
settlement date, with the exception of securities with a forward starting
effective date, where interest income is recorded on the accrual basis
from effective date. For convertible securities, premiums attributable to
the conversion feature are not amortized. Estimated tax liabilities on
certain foreign securities are recorded on an accrual basis and are
reflected as components of interest income or net change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on investments on the Statement of
Operations, as appropriate. Tax liabilities realized as a result of such
security sales are reflected as a component of net realized gain (loss)
on investments on the Statement of Operations. Paydown gains (losses)
on mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities, if any, are
recorded as components of interest income on the Statement of
Operations. Income or short-term capital gain distributions received
from registered investment companies, if any, are recorded as dividend
income. Long-term capital gain distributions received from registered
investment companies, if any, are recorded as realized gains.
SEMIANNUAL REPORT JUNE 30, 2017
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont.)
(b) Multiclass Operations Each class offered by the Trust has equal
rights as to assets and voting privileges (except that shareholders of a
class have exclusive voting rights regarding any matter relating solely to
that class of shares). Income and non-class specific expenses are
allocated daily to each class on the basis of the relative net assets.
Realized and unrealized capital gains (losses) are allocated daily based
on the relative net assets of each class of the Portfolio. Class specific
expenses, where applicable, currently include supervisory and
administrative and distribution and servicing fees. Under certain
circumstances, the per share net asset value (“NAV”) of a class of the
Portfolio’s shares may be different from the per share NAV of another
class of shares as a result of the different daily expense accruals
applicable to each class of shares.
(c) Distributions to Shareholders Distributions from net investment
income, if any, are declared and distributed to shareholders quarterly.
Net realized capital gains earned by the Portfolio, if any, will be
distributed no less frequently than once each year.
Income distributions and capital gain distributions are determined in
accordance with income tax regulations which may differ from U.S.
GAAP. Differences between tax regulations and U.S. GAAP may cause
timing differences between income and capital gain recognition.
Further, the character of investment income and capital gains may be
different for certain transactions under the two methods of accounting.
As a result, income distributions and capital gain distributions declared
during a fiscal period may differ significantly from the net investment
income (loss) and realized gains (losses) reported on the Portfolio’s
annual financial statements presented under U.S. GAAP.
If the Portfolio estimates that a portion of one of its dividend
distributions may be comprised of amounts from sources other than net
investment income in accordance with its policies and good accounting
practices, the Portfolio will notify shareholders of record of the
estimated composition of such distribution through a Section 19
Notice. For these purposes, the Portfolio estimates the source or
sources from which a distribution is paid, to the close of the period as
of which it is paid, in reference to its internal accounting records and
related accounting practices. If, based on such accounting records and
practices, it is estimated that a particular distribution does not include
capital gains or paid-in surplus or other capital sources, a Section 19
Notice generally would not be issued. It is important to note that
differences exist between the Portfolio’s daily internal accounting
records and practices, the Portfolio’s financial statements presented in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and recordkeeping practices under income
tax regulations. For instance, the Portfolio’s internal accounting records
and practices may take into account, among other factors, tax-related
characteristics of certain sources of distributions that differ from
treatment under U.S. GAAP. Examples of such differences may include,
16
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among others, the treatment of paydowns on mortgage-backed
securities purchased at a discount and periodic payments under interest
rate swap contracts. Accordingly, among other consequences, it is
possible that the Portfolio may not issue a Section 19 Notice in
situations where the Portfolio’s financial statements prepared later and
in accordance with U.S. GAAP and/or the final tax character of those
distributions might later report that the sources of those distributions
included capital gains and/or a return of capital. Final determination of
a distribution’s tax character will be provided to shareholders when
such information is available.
Distributions classified as a tax basis return of capital, if any, are
reflected on the Statements of Changes in Net Assets and have been
recorded to paid in capital. In addition, other amounts have been
reclassified between undistributed (overdistributed) net investment
income (loss), accumulated undistributed (overdistributed) net realized
gain (loss) and/or paid in capital to more appropriately conform U.S.
GAAP to tax characterizations of distributions.
(d) New Accounting Pronouncements In March 2016, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”), ASU 2016-05 which provides guidance related to the
impact of derivative contract novations on certain relationships under
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 815. The ASU is effective for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods
within those annual periods.The Portfolio has adopted the ASU. The
implementation of the ASU did not have an impact on the Portfolio’s
financial statements.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15 which amends ASC 230
to clarify guidance on the classification of certain cash receipts and cash
payments in the Statement of Cash Flows. The ASU is effective for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within
those annual periods. At this time, management is evaluating the
implications of these changes on the financial statements.
In October 2016, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) adopted new rules and forms, and amendments to certain
current rules and forms, to modernize reporting and disclosure of
information by registered investment companies. The amendments to
Regulation S-X will require standardized, enhanced disclosure about
derivatives in investment company financial statements, and will also
change the rules governing the form and content of such financial
statements. The compliance date for these amendments is August 1,
2017. Compliance is based on reporting period-end date. At this time,
management is evaluating the implications of these changes on the
financial statements.
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18 which amends
ASC 230 to provide guidance on the classification and presentation of
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changes in restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents on the
Statement of Cash Flows. The ASU is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those
annual periods. At this time, management is evaluating the
implications of these changes on the financial statements.
In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08 which provides
guidance related to the amortization period for certain purchased
callable debt securities held at a premium. The ASU is effective for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim
periods within those annual periods. The Portfolio has adopted the
ASU. The implementation of the ASU did not have an impact on the
Portfolio’s financial statements.

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS
(a) Investment Valuation Policies The price of the Portfolio’s shares is
based on the Portfolio’s NAV. The NAV of the Portfolio, or each of its
share classes, as applicable, is determined by dividing the total value of
portfolio investments and other assets, less any liabilities attributable to
the Portfolio or class, by the total number of shares outstanding of the
Portfolio or class.
On each day that the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) is open,
Portfolio and Underlying PIMCO Fund shares are ordinarily valued as of
the close of regular trading (“NYSE Close”). Information that becomes
known to the Portfolio or an Underlying PIMCO Fund or its agents after
the time as of which NAV has been calculated on a particular day will
not generally be used to retroactively adjust the price of a security or
the NAV determined earlier that day. The Portfolio reserves the right to
change the time as of which its NAV is calculated if the Portfolio closes
earlier, or as permitted by the SEC.
The assets of the Portfolio consist of shares of the Underlying PIMCO
Funds, which are valued at their respective NAVs at the time of
valuation of the Portfolio’s shares. For purposes of calculating the NAV
of the Underlying PIMCO Funds, portfolio securities and other assets for
which market quotes are readily available are valued at market value.
Market value is generally determined on the basis of official closing
prices or the last reported sales prices, or if no sales are reported,
based on quotes obtained from established market makers or prices
(including evaluated prices) supplied by the Portfolio’s approved pricing
services, quotation reporting systems and other third-party sources
(together, “Pricing Services”). The Portfolio will normally use pricing
data for domestic equity securities received shortly after the NYSE Close
and does not normally take into account trading, clearances or
settlements that take place after the NYSE Close. If market value
pricing is used, a foreign (non-U.S.) equity security traded on a foreign
exchange or on more than one exchange is typically valued using

pricing information from the exchange considered by the Adviser to be
the primary exchange. A foreign (non-U.S.) equity security will be
valued as of the close of trading on the foreign exchange, or the NYSE
Close, if the NYSE Close occurs before the end of trading on the foreign
exchange. Domestic and foreign (non-U.S.) fixed income securities,
non-exchange traded derivatives, and equity options are normally
valued on the basis of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers or
Pricing Services using data reflecting the earlier closing of the principal
markets for those securities. Prices obtained from Pricing Services may
be based on, among other things, information provided by market
makers or estimates of market values obtained from yield data relating
to investments or securities with similar characteristics. Certain fixed
income securities purchased on a delayed-delivery basis are marked to
market daily until settlement at the forward settlement date. Exchangetraded options, except equity options, futures and options on futures
are valued at the settlement price determined by the relevant
exchange. Swap agreements are valued on the basis of bid quotes
obtained from brokers and dealers or market-based prices supplied by
Pricing Services. The Portfolio’s investments in open-end management
investment companies, other than exchange-traded funds (“ETFs”), are
valued at the NAVs of such investments.
If a foreign (non-U.S.) equity security’s value has materially changed after
the close of the security’s primary exchange or principal market but
before the NYSE Close, the security may be valued at fair value based on
procedures established and approved by the Board of Trustees of the
Trust (the “Board”). Foreign (non-U.S.) equity securities that do not trade
when the NYSE is open are also valued at fair value. With respect to
foreign (non-U.S.) equity securities, the Portfolio may determine the fair
value of investments based on information provided by Pricing Services
and other third-party vendors, which may recommend fair value or
adjustments with reference to other securities, indices or assets. In
considering whether fair valuation is required and in determining fair
values, the Portfolio may, among other things, consider significant events
(which may be considered to include changes in the value of U.S.
securities or securities indices) that occur after the close of the relevant
market and before the NYSE Close. The Portfolio may utilize modeling
tools provided by third-party vendors to determine fair values of foreign
(non-U.S.) securities. Foreign exchanges may permit trading in foreign
(non-U.S.) equity securities on days when the Trust is not open for
business, which may result in the Portfolio’s portfolio investments being
affected when shareholders are unable to buy or sell shares.
Senior secured floating rate loans for which an active secondary market
exists to a reliable degree will be valued at the mean of the last available
bid/ask prices in the market for such loans, as provided by a Pricing
Service. Senior secured floating rate loans for which an active secondary
market does not exist to a reliable degree will be valued at fair value,
which is intended to approximate market value. In valuing a senior
SEMIANNUAL REPORT JUNE 30, 2017
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secured floating rate loan at fair value, the factors considered may
include, but are not limited to, the following: (a) the creditworthiness
of the borrower and any intermediate participants, (b) the terms of the
loan, (c) recent prices in the market for similar loans, if any, and
(d) recent prices in the market for instruments of similar quality, rate,
period until next interest rate reset and maturity.
Investments valued in currencies other than the U.S. dollar are
converted to the U.S. dollar using exchange rates obtained from Pricing
Services. As a result, the value of such investments and, in turn, the
NAV of an Underlying PIMCO Fund’s shares may be affected by
changes in the value of currencies in relation to the U.S. dollar. The
value of investments traded in markets outside the United States or
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar may be affected
significantly on a day that the Trust is not open for business. As a
result, to the extent that the Portfolio invests in Underlying PIMCO
Funds that hold foreign (non-U.S.) investments, the value of those
investments may change at times when shareholders are unable to buy
or sell shares and the value of such investments will be reflected in the
Portfolio’s next calculated NAV.
Investments for which market quotes or market based valuations are
not readily available are valued at fair value as determined in good
faith by the Board or persons acting at their direction. The Board has
adopted methods for valuing securities and other assets in
circumstances where market quotes are not readily available, and has
delegated to the Adviser the responsibility for applying the fair
valuation methods. In the event that market quotes or market based
valuations are not readily available, and the security or asset cannot be
valued pursuant to a Board approved valuation method, the value of
the security or asset will be determined in good faith by the Valuation
Oversight Committee of the Board (“Valuation Oversight Committee”),
generally based on recommendations provided by the Adviser. Market
quotes are considered not readily available in circumstances where
there is an absence of current or reliable market-based data (e.g., trade
information, bid/ask information, indicative market quotations (“Broker
Quotes”), Pricing Services’ prices), including where events occur after
the close of the relevant market, but prior to the NYSE Close, that
materially affect the values of an Underlying PIMCO Fund’s securities or
assets. In addition, market quotes are considered not readily available
when, due to extraordinary circumstances, the exchanges or markets
on which the securities trade do not open for trading for the entire day
and no other market prices are available. The Board has delegated to
the Adviser the responsibility for monitoring significant events that may
materially affect the values of the Portfolio’s securities or assets and for
determining whether the value of the applicable securities or assets
should be reevaluated in light of such significant events.
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When an Underlying PIMCO Fund uses fair valuation to determine the
value of a portfolio security or other asset for purposes of calculating its
NAV, such investments will not be priced on the basis of quotes from
the primary market in which they are traded, but rather may be priced
by another method that the Board or persons acting at their direction
believe reflects fair value. Fair valuation may require subjective
determinations about the value of a security. While the Trust’s policy is
intended to result in a calculation of the Portfolio’s and Underlying
PIMCO Funds’ NAVs that fairly reflects security values as of the time of
pricing, the Trust cannot ensure that fair values determined by the
Board or persons acting at their direction would accurately reflect the
price that an Underlying PIMCO Fund could obtain for a security if it
were to dispose of that security as of the time of pricing (for instance,
in a forced or distressed sale). The prices used by an Underlying PIMCO
Fund may differ from the value that would be realized if the securities
were sold. An Underlying PIMCO Fund’s use of fair valuation may also
help to deter “stale price arbitrage” as discussed under the “Frequent
or Excessive Purchases, Exchanges and Redemptions” section in the
Portfolio’s prospectus.
(b) Fair Value Hierarchy U.S. GAAP describes fair value as the price that
the Portfolio would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. It establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes inputs to
valuation methods and requires disclosure of the fair value hierarchy,
separately for each major category of assets and liabilities, that
segregates fair value measurements into levels (Level 1, 2, or 3). The
inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an
indication of the risks associated with investing in those securities.
Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:
䡲

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets or exchanges for identical
assets and liabilities.

䡲

Level 2 — Significant other observable inputs, which may include,
but are not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest
rates, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities,
credit risks and default rates) or other market corroborated inputs.

䡲

Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs based on the best
information available in the circumstances, to the extent observable
inputs are not available, which may include assumptions made by
the Board or persons acting at their direction that are used in
determining the fair value of investments.

In accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP, the amounts of
transfers between Levels 1 and 2 and transfers into and out of Level 3,

June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

if material, are disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of Investments for
the Portfolio.

and liabilities categorized as Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

For fair valuations using significant unobservable inputs, U.S. GAAP
requires a reconciliation of the beginning to ending balances for
reported fair values that presents changes attributable to realized gain
(loss), unrealized appreciation (depreciation), purchases and sales,
accrued discounts (premiums), and transfers into and out of the Level 3
category during the period. The end of period value is used for the
transfers between Levels of the Portfolio’s assets and liabilities.
Additionally, U.S. GAAP requires quantitative information regarding the
significant unobservable inputs used in the determination of fair value
of assets or liabilities categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
In accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP, a fair value
hierarchy, and if material, a Level 3 reconciliation and details of
significant unobservable inputs, have been included in the Notes to
Schedule of Investments for the Portfolio.

Investments in registered open-end investment companies (other than
ETFs) will be valued based upon the NAVs of such investments and are
categorized as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Investments in
unregistered open-end investment companies will be calculated based
upon the NAVs of such investments and are considered Level 1
provided that the NAVs are observable, calculated daily and are the
value at which both purchases and sales will be conducted.

(c) Valuation Techniques and the Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1 and Level 2 trading assets and trading liabilities, at fair
value The valuation methods (or “techniques”) and significant inputs
used in determining the fair values of portfolio securities or other assets

Level 3 trading assets and trading liabilities, at fair value When a
fair valuation method is applied by the Adviser that uses significant
unobservable inputs, investments will be priced by a method that the
Board or persons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
are categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Short-term debt instruments (such as commercial paper) having a
remaining maturity of 60 days or less may be valued at amortized cost,
so long as the amortized cost value of such short-term debt instruments
is approximately the same as the fair value of the instrument as
determined without the use of amortized cost valuation. These
securities are categorized as Level 2 or Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy depending on the source of the base price.

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS
(a) Investments in Affiliates
The Portfolio invests under normal circumstances substantially all of its assets in Underlying PIMCO Funds which are considered to be affiliated with
the Portfolio. The Portfolio may invest in the PIMCO Short-Term Floating NAV Portfolio III and the PIMCO Short-Term Floating NAV Portfolio IV
(“Central Funds”) to the extent permitted by the Act and rules thereunder. The Central Funds are registered investment companies created for use
solely by the series of the Trust and other series of registered investment companies advised by the Adviser, in connection with their cash
management activities. The main investments of the Central Funds are money market and short maturity fixed income instruments. The Central
Funds may incur expenses related to their investment activities, but do not pay Investment Advisory Fees or Supervisory and Administrative Fees to
the Adviser. The Central Funds are considered to be affiliated with the Portfolio. The table below shows the Portfolio’s transactions in and earnings
from investments in an affiliated Fund for the period ended June 30, 2017 (amounts in thousands†):

Underlying PIMCO Funds

PIMCO CommoditiesPLUS® Strategy Fund
PIMCO CommodityRealReturn Strategy Fund®
PIMCO Credit Absolute Return Fund
PIMCO Diversified Income Fund
PIMCO Emerging Local Bond Fund
PIMCO Emerging Markets Currency Fund
PIMCO Extended Duration Fund
PIMCO Government Money Market Fund
PIMCO High Yield Fund
PIMCO High Yield Spectrum Fund
PIMCO Income Fund
PIMCO Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund
PIMCO Long Duration Total Return Fund

Change in
Realized Net
Net
Unrealized
Market Value Purchases Proceeds
Realized
Appreciation Market Value Dividend Capital Gain
(1)
12/31/2016
at Cost
from Sales Gain (Loss) (Depreciation) 06/30/2017 Income
Distributions(1)

$

459
67
21
112
738
1,237
146
0
311
639
873
301
110

$ 300
136
122
46
232
428
216
354
72
114
350
137
36

$ (90)
(72)
(118)
(98)
(143)
(193)
(78)
(316)
(213)
(338)
(285)
(196)
(13)

$ (7)
(6)
0
3
(16)
(8)
(5)
0
10
2
(8)
(4)
(1)

$ (64)
(4)
1
1
64
91
21
0
(4)
13
27
13
9

$

598
121
26
64
875
1,555
300
38
176
430
957
251
141

$ 28
4
0
3
38
25
4
0
7
16
22
6
3

$ 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
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Change in
Realized Net
Net
Unrealized
Market Value Purchases Proceeds
Realized
Appreciation Market Value Dividend Capital Gain
12/31/2016
at Cost
from Sales Gain (Loss) (Depreciation) 06/30/2017 Income(1) Distributions(1)

Underlying PIMCO Funds

PIMCO Long-Term Credit Fund
PIMCO Long-Term U.S. Government Fund
PIMCO Low Duration Fund
PIMCO Mortgage Opportunities Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental Advantage PLUS Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental Emerging Markets Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental International Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental PLUS EMG Fund
PIMCO RAE Fundamental PLUS International Fund
PIMCO RAE Low Volatility PLUS EMG Fund
PIMCO RAE Low Volatility PLUS Fund
PIMCO RAE Low Volatility PLUS International Fund
PIMCO RAE Worldwide Fundamental Advantage PLUS Fund
PIMCO RAE Worldwide Long/Short PLUS Fund
PIMCO Real Return Asset Fund
PIMCO Real Return Fund
PIMCO RealEstateRealReturn Strategy Fund
PIMCO Senior Floating Rate Fund
PIMCO StocksPLUS® International Fund (U.S. Dollar-Hedged)
PIMCO StocksPLUS® International Fund (Unhedged)
PIMCO StocksPLUS® Short Fund
PIMCO Total Return Fund
PIMCO TRENDS Managed Futures Strategy Fund
Totals
†
(1)

$

3
283
398
87
162
497
0
514
338
1,082
207
650
106
607
47
242
257
425
360
67
2,130
321
34
$ 13,831

$

27
448
964
23
33
88
36
113
252
151
31
102
5
30
94
91
418
194
91
103
1,327
585
0
$ 7,749

$

(30)
(320)
(938)
(6)
(45)
(76)
0
(42)
0
(193)
(98)
(170)
(105)
(312)
(83)
(26)
(91)
(13)
0
0
(145)
(390)
0
$ (5,236)

$

0
(5)
1
0
(2)
13
0
4
0
(11)
7
3
5
8
0
0
(2)
0
0
0
(15)
(8)
0
$ (42)

$

0
28
(1)
2
(3)
43
0
44
52
146
2
67
(11)
6
0
0
8
(1)
24
16
(154)
14
(1)
$ 449

$

0
434
424
106
145
565
36
633
642
1,175
149
652
0
339
58
307
590
605
475
186
3,143
522
33
$ 16,751

$

0
7
3
2
1
0
0
18
11
22
1
9
5
5
1
4
4
10
14
2
16
5
0
$ 296

$ 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
$ 0

A zero balance may reflect actual amounts rounding to less than one thousand.
The tax characterization of distributions is determined in accordance with Federal income tax regulations. The actual tax characterization of distributions paid are determined at the
end of the fiscal year of the affiliated fund. See Note 2, Distributions to Shareholders, in the Notes to Financial Statements for more information.

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING
TRANSACTIONS
The following disclosures contain information on the Portfolio’s ability
to lend or borrow cash or securities to the extent permitted under the
Act, which may be viewed as borrowing or financing transactions by
the Portfolio. The location of these instruments in the Portfolio’s
financial statements is described below. For a detailed description of
credit and counterparty risks that can be associated with borrowings
and other financing transactions, please see Note 6, Principal Risks.

(a) Line of Credit Consistent with its principal investment strategies,
the Portfolio has entered into an amended and restated secured credit
agreement with State Street Bank & Trust Company and other
commercial banks for investment purposes subject to the limitations of
the 1940 Act. State Street Bank & Trust Company serves as both a
bank and as an agent for the other banks that are parties to the
agreement. All or a portion of the Portfolio’s securities are pledged as
collateral under the agreement.

As of June 30, 2017, the credit agreement comprises both revolving and term-loan tranches. The commitment amount of the credit agreement is
$4,750,000. The Portfolio pays financing charges based on a combination of LIBOR-based variable plus a credit spread. The Portfolio also pays a fee
of 0.15% per annum on the unused commitment amounts of the revolving line of credit. The commitment outstanding under the revolving and
term-loan tranches are:

Tranches

Tranche A 1 Year, Monthly Revolving
Tranche B 1 Year, Monthly Revolving

Commitment
Outstanding
(in thousands)

$
$

2,375
2,375

Termination
Date

11/27/2017
04/26/2018

Borrowings outstanding as of June 30, 2017 are disclosed as payable for line of credit on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Commitment,
upfront and interest fees paid by the Portfolio in relation to the borrowings are disclosed as part of interest expense on the Statement of Operations.

20

PIMCO VARIABLE INSURANCE TRUST

June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

The Portfolio’s borrowing activity under the agreement for the period ended June 30, 2017, was as follows (amounts in thousands†):
Average
Outstanding
Principal

$
†

Average Weighted
Rate of Interest

4,461

1.65%

Interest

$

Commitment Fees
and Upfront Fees

35

$

7

Outstanding
Principal as of
06/30/2017

$

4,750

A zero balance may reflect actual amounts rounding to less than one thousand

6. PRINCIPAL RISKS
In the normal course of business, the Portfolio (or Underlying PIMCO
Funds) trades financial instruments and enters into financial
transactions where risk of potential loss exists due to such things as
changes in the market (market risk) or failure or inability of the other
party to a transaction to perform (credit and counterparty risk). See
below for a detailed description of select principal risks. For a more
comprehensive list of potential risks the Portfolio may be subject to,
please see the Important Information About the Portfolio.
Except with regard to the Investments in Mutual Funds subsection (if
any), and unless stated otherwise, any reference in the below subsections
to the “Portfolio” includes the Portfolio, and, where applicable, Acquired
Funds, Underlying Funds and Underlying PIMCO Funds.
Investments in Mutual Funds To the extent that the Portfolio invests
substantially all of its assets in Underlying PIMCO Funds, the risks
associated with investing in the Portfolio will be closely related to the
risks associated with the securities and other investments held by the
Underlying PIMCO Funds. The ability of the Portfolio to achieve its
investment objective may depend upon the ability of the Underlying
PIMCO Fund to achieve their respective investment objectives. There
can be no assurance that the investment objective of any Underlying
PIMCO Funds will be achieved. The NAV of the Portfolio will fluctuate
in response to changes in the respective NAV of the Underlying PIMCO
Funds in which it invests. The extent to which the investment
performance and risks associated with the Portfolio correlates to those
of a particular Underlying PIMCO Fund will depend upon the extent to
which the assets of the Portfolio are allocated from time to time for
investment in the Underlying PIMCO Funds, which will vary. Investing
in Underlying PIMCO Funds involves certain additional expenses and
tax results that would not be present in a direct investment in the
Underlying PIMCO Funds.
The Portfolio’s investment performance depends upon how its assets
are allocated and reallocated according to the Portfolio’s asset
allocation targets and ranges. A principal risk of investing in the
Portfolio is that the Portfolio’s asset allocation sub-adviser will make
less than optimal or poor asset allocation decisions. The asset
allocation sub-adviser attempts to identify investment allocations for
the Underlying PIMCO Funds that will provide consistent, quality
performance for the Portfolio, but there is no guarantee that such
allocation techniques will produce the desired results.

Market Risks The Portfolio’s investments in financial derivative
instruments and other financial instruments expose the Portfolio to
various risks such as, but not limited to, interest rate, foreign (non-U.S.)
currency, equity and commodity risks.
The market values of equities, such as common stocks and preferred
securities or equity related investments such as futures and options,
have historically risen and fallen in periodic cycles and may decline due
to general market conditions which are not specifically related to a
particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic
conditions, changes in the general outlook for corporate earnings,
changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment
generally. They may also decline due to factors which affect a particular
industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production
costs and competitive conditions within an industry. Different types of
equity securities may react differently to these developments. Equity
securities and equity related investments generally have greater market
price volatility than fixed income securities.
Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities and other
instruments held by the Portfolio will decline in value because of
changes in interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of
certain fixed income securities held by the Portfolio is likely to decrease.
A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate. Interest rate changes can be
sudden and unpredictable, and the Portfolio may lose money if these
changes are not anticipated by the Portfolio’s management. The
Portfolio may not be able to hedge against changes in interest rates or
may choose not to do so for cost or other reasons. In addition, any
hedges may not work as intended.
Duration is a measure used to determine the sensitivity of a security’s
price to changes in interest rates that incorporates a security’s yield,
coupon, final maturity and call features, among other characteristics.
Convexity is an additional measure of interest rate sensitivity that
measures the rate of change of duration in response to changes in
interest rates. Fixed income securities with longer durations tend to be
more sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them more
volatile than securities with shorter durations. A wide variety of factors
can cause interest rates to rise (e.g., central bank monetary policies,
inflation rates, general economic conditions, etc.). Under current
economic conditions, interest rates are near historically low levels.
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Thus, the Portfolio currently faces a heightened level of interest rate risk,
especially since the Federal Reserve Board has ended its quantitative
easing program and has begun, and may continue, to raise interest rates.
To the extent the Federal Reserve Board continues to raise interest rates,
there is a risk that rates across the financial system may rise. Further,
while bond markets have steadily grown over the past three decades,
dealer “market making” ability has not kept pace and in some cases has
decreased. Given the importance of intermediary “market making” in
creating a robust and active market, fixed income securities are currently
facing increased volatility and liquidity risks. All of these factors,
collectively and/or individually, could cause the Portfolio to lose value. If
the Portfolio lost enough value, the Portfolio could face increased
shareholder redemptions, which could force the Portfolio to liquidate
investments at disadvantageous times or prices, thereby adversely
affecting the Portfolio. Also, the Portfolio may be adversely affected when
a large shareholder purchases or redeems large amounts of shares, which
can occur at any time and may impact the Portfolio in the same manner
as a high volume of purchase or redemption requests. Large shareholder
transactions may impact the Portfolio’s liquidity and net asset value. Such
transactions may also increase the Portfolio’s transaction costs or
otherwise cause the Portfolio to perform differently than intended.
Moreover, the Portfolio is subject to the risk that other shareholders may
make investment decisions based on the choices of a large shareholder.
If the Portfolio invests directly in foreign (non-U.S.) currencies or in
securities that trade in, and receive revenues in, foreign (non-U.S.)
currencies, or in financial derivative instruments that provide exposure
to foreign (non-U.S.) currencies, it will be subject to the risk that those
currencies will decline in value relative to the base currency of the
Portfolio, or, in the case of hedging positions, that the Portfolio’s base
currency will decline in value relative to the currency being hedged.
Currency rates in foreign countries may fluctuate significantly over short
periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest
rates, intervention (or the failure to intervene) by U.S. or foreign
governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls
or other political developments in the United States or abroad. As a
result, the Portfolio’s investments in foreign currency-denominated
securities may reduce the Portfolio’s returns.
The Portfolio’s investments in commodity-linked financial derivative
instruments may subject the Portfolio to greater market price volatility
than investments in traditional securities. The value of commoditylinked financial derivative instruments may be affected by changes in
overall market movements, commodity index volatility, changes in
interest rates, or factors affecting a particular industry or commodity,
such as drought, floods, weather, livestock disease, embargoes, tariffs
and international economic, political and regulatory developments.
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Credit and Counterparty Risks The Portfolio will be exposed to credit
risk to parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of
settlement default. The Portfolio minimizes concentrations of credit risk
by undertaking transactions with a large number of customers and
counterparties on recognized and reputable exchanges, where
applicable. Over the counter (“OTC”) derivative transactions are
subject to the risk that a counterparty to the transaction will not fulfill
its contractual obligations to the other party, as many of the
protections afforded to centrally cleared derivative transactions might
not be available for OTC derivative transactions. For derivatives traded
on an exchange or through a central counterparty, credit risk resides
with the Portfolio’s clearing broker, or the clearinghouse itself, rather
than with a counterparty in an OTC derivative transaction. The Portfolio
could lose money if the issuer or guarantor of a fixed income security,
or the counterparty to a financial derivative instruments contract,
repurchase agreement or a loan of portfolio securities, is unable or
unwilling to make timely principal and/or interest payments, or to
otherwise honor its obligations. Securities and financial derivative
instruments are subject to varying degrees of credit risk, which may be
reflected in credit ratings.
Similar to credit risk, the Portfolio may be exposed to counterparty risk,
or the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Portfolio
has unsettled or open transactions will default. PIMCO, as the Adviser,
seeks to minimize counterparty risks to the Portfolio through a number
of ways. Prior to entering into transactions with a new counterparty,
the PIMCO Counterparty Risk Committee conducts an extensive credit
review of such counterparty and must approve the use of such
counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant to the terms of the underlying
contract, to the extent that unpaid amounts owed to the Portfolio
exceed a predetermined threshold, such counterparty is required to
advance collateral to the Portfolio in the form of cash or securities
equal in value to the unpaid amount owed to the Portfolio. The
Portfolio may invest such collateral in securities or other instruments
and will typically pay interest to the counterparty on the collateral
received. If the unpaid amount owed to the Portfolio subsequently
decreases, the Portfolio would be required to return to the counterparty
all or a portion of the collateral previously advanced. PIMCO’s attempts
to minimize counterparty risk may, however, be unsuccessful.
All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery
using approved counterparties. The risk of default is considered
minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the Portfolio
has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the
securities have been delivered by the counterparty. The trade will fail if
either party fails to meet its obligation.

June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

7. MASTER ARRANGEMENTS
The Portfolio may be subject to various netting arrangements (“Master
Agreements”) with select counterparties. Master Agreements govern
the terms of certain transactions, and reduce the counterparty risk
associated with relevant transactions by specifying credit protection
mechanisms and providing standardization that improves legal
certainty. Each type of Master Agreement governs certain types of
transactions. Different types of transactions may be traded out of
different legal entities or affiliates of a particular organization, resulting
in the need for multiple agreements with a single counterparty. As the
Master Agreements are specific to unique operations of different asset
types, they allow the Portfolio to close out and net its total exposure to
a counterparty in the event of a default with respect to all the
transactions governed under a single Master Agreement with a
counterparty. For financial reporting purposes the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities generally presents derivative assets and liabilities on a
gross basis, which reflects the full risks and exposures prior to netting.
Master Agreements can also help limit counterparty risk by specifying
collateral posting arrangements at pre-arranged exposure levels. Under
most Master Agreements, collateral is routinely transferred if the total net
exposure to certain transactions (net of existing collateral already in
place) governed under the relevant Master Agreement with a
counterparty in a given account exceeds a specified threshold, which
typically ranges from zero to $250,000 depending on the counterparty
and the type of Master Agreement. United States Treasury Bills and U.S.
dollar cash are generally the preferred forms of collateral, although other
forms of AAA rated paper or sovereign securities may be used depending
on the terms outlined in the applicable Master Agreement. Securities and
cash pledged as collateral are reflected as assets on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities as either a component of Investments at value
(securities) or Deposits with counterparty. Cash collateral received is not
typically held in a segregated account and as such is reflected as a
liability on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities as Deposits from
counterparty. The market value of any securities received as collateral is
not reflected as a component of NAV. The Portfolio’s overall exposure to
counterparty risk can change substantially within a short period, as it is
affected by each transaction subject to the relevant Master Agreement.
Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase
Agreements (individually and collectively “Master Repo Agreements”)
govern repurchase, reverse repurchase, and sale-buyback transactions
between the Portfolio and select counterparties. Master Repo
Agreements maintain provisions for, among other things, initiation,
income payments, events of default, and maintenance of collateral. The
market value of transactions under the Master Repo Agreement,
collateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by counterparty as
of period end are disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of Investments.

Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements (“Master Forward
Agreements”) govern certain forward settling transactions, such as TBA
securities, delayed-delivery or sale-buyback transactions by and
between the Portfolio and select counterparties. The Master Forward
Agreements maintain provisions for, among other things, transaction
initiation and confirmation, payment and transfer, events of default,
termination, and maintenance of collateral. The market value of
forward settling transactions, collateral pledged or received, and the
net exposure by counterparty as of period end is disclosed in the Notes
to Schedule of Investments.
Customer Account Agreements and related addenda govern cleared
derivatives transactions such as futures, options on futures, and cleared
OTC derivatives. Such transactions require posting of initial margin as
determined by each relevant clearing agency which is segregated in an
account at a futures commission merchant (“FCM”) registered with the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”). In the United States,
counterparty risk may be reduced as creditors of an FCM cannot have a
claim to Portfolio assets in the segregated account. Portability of
exposure reduces risk to the Portfolio. Variation margin, or changes in
market value, are exchanged daily, but may not be netted between
futures and cleared OTC derivatives unless the parties have agreed to a
separate arrangement in respect of portfolio margining. The market
value or accumulated unrealized appreciation (depreciation), initial
margin posted, and any unsettled variation margin as of period end are
disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of Investments.
International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master Agreements
and Credit Support Annexes (“ISDA Master Agreements”) govern
bilateral OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Portfolio with
select counterparties. ISDA Master Agreements maintain provisions for
general obligations, representations, agreements, collateral posting and
events of default or termination. Events of termination include conditions
that may entitle counterparties to elect to terminate early and cause
settlement of all outstanding transactions under the applicable ISDA
Master Agreement. Any election to terminate early could be material to
the financial statements. In limited circumstances, the ISDA Master
Agreement may contain additional provisions that add counterparty
protection beyond coverage of existing daily exposure if the counterparty
has a decline in credit quality below a predefined level. These amounts, if
any, may be segregated with a third-party custodian. The market value of
OTC financial derivative instruments, collateral received or pledged, and
net exposure by counterparty as of period end are disclosed in the Notes
to Schedule of Investments.

8. FEES AND EXPENSES
(a) Investment Advisory Fee PIMCO is a majority-owned subsidiary of
Allianz Asset Management of America L.P. (“Allianz Asset Management”)
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and serves as the Adviser to the Trust, pursuant to an investment advisory
contract. The Adviser receives a monthly fee from the Portfolio at an
annual rate based on average daily net assets (the “Investment Advisory
Fee”). The Investment Advisory Fee for all classes is charged at an annual
rate as noted in the table in note (b) below.
(b) Supervisory and Administrative Fee PIMCO serves as
administrator (the “Administrator”) and provides supervisory and

administrative services to the Trust for which it receives a monthly
supervisory and administrative fee based on each share class’s average
daily net assets (the “Supervisory and Administrative Fee”). As the
Administrator, PIMCO bears the costs of various third-party services,
including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency
and printing costs.

The Investment Advisory Fees and Supervisory and Administrative Fees for all classes, as applicable, are charged at the annual rate as noted in the
following table (calculated as a percentage of the Portfolio’s average daily net assets attributable to each class):
Investment Advisory Fee

*

All Classes

Institutional
Class

0.20%

0.25%

Supervisory and Administrative Fee
Administrative
Advisor
Class M
Class
Class

0.25%*

0.25%

This particular share class has been registered with the SEC, but has not yet launched.

(c) Distribution and Servicing Fees PIMCO Investments LLC, a whollyowned subsidiary of PIMCO, serves as the distributor (“Distributor”) of
the Trust’s shares.
The Trust has adopted an Administrative Services Plan with respect to
the Administrative Class shares of the Portfolio pursuant to Rule 12b-1
under the Act (the “Administrative Plan”). Under the terms of the
Administrative Plan, the Trust is permitted to compensate the
Distributor, out of the Administrative Class assets of the Portfolio, in an
amount up to 0.15% on an annual basis of the average daily net assets
of that class, for providing or procuring through financial intermediaries
administrative, recordkeeping and investor services for Administrative
Class shareholders of the Portfolio.
The Trust has adopted a separate Distribution and Servicing Plan for each
of the Advisor Class and Class M shares of the Portfolio (the “Distribution
and Servicing Plans”). The Distribution and Servicing Plans have been
adopted pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the Act. The Distribution and
Servicing Plans permit the Portfolio to compensate the Distributor for
providing or procuring through financial intermediaries distribution,
administrative, recordkeeping, shareholder and/or related services with
respect to Advisor Class and Class M shares. The Distribution and
Servicing Plans permit the Portfolio to make total payments at an annual
rate of up to 0.25% of its average daily net assets attributable to its
Advisor Class or Class M shares, respectively. The Distribution and
Servicing Plan for Class M shares also permits the Portfolio to
compensate the Distributor for providing or procuring administrative,
recordkeeping, and other investor services at an annual rate of up to
0.20% of its average daily net assets attributable to its Class M shares.
Class M
Administrative Class
Advisor Class
*
24

0.25%

Distribution Fee

Servicing Fee

0.25%*
—
0.25%

0.20%*
0.15%
—

This particular share class has been registered with the SEC, but has not yet launched.
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(d) Portfolio Expenses PIMCO provides or procures supervisory and
administrative services for shareholders and also bears the costs of
various third-party services required by the Portfolio, including audit,
custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency and printing
costs. The Trust is responsible for the following expenses: (i) taxes and
governmental fees; (ii) brokerage fees and commissions and other
portfolio transaction expenses; (iii) the costs of borrowing money,
including interest expense; (iv) fees and expenses of the Trustees who
are not “interested persons” of PIMCO or the Trust, and any counsel
retained exclusively for their benefit; (v) extraordinary expense,
including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses;
(vi) organizational expenses; and (vii) any expenses allocated or
allocable to a specific class of shares, which include service fees
payable with respect to the Administrative Class Shares, and may
include certain other expenses as permitted by the Trust’s Multi-Class
Plan adopted pursuant to Rule 18f-3 under the Act and subject to
review and approval by the Trustees. The ratio of expenses to average
net assets per share class, as disclosed on the Financial Highlights, may
differ from the annual portfolio operating expenses per share class.
Each Trustee, other than those affiliated with PIMCO or its affiliates,
receives an annual retainer of $36,850, plus $3,800 for each Board
meeting attended in person, $775 for each committee meeting
attended and $750 for each Board meeting attended telephonically,
plus reimbursement of related expenses. In addition, the audit
committee chair receives an additional annual retainer of $6,000, the
valuation oversight committee lead receives an additional annual
retainer of $4,250 (to the extent there are co-leads of the valuation
oversight committee, the annual retainer will be split evenly between
the co-leads, so that each co-lead individually receives an additional
retainer of $2,125) and the governance committee chair receives an
additional annual retainer of $2,750. The Lead Independent Trustee
receives an annual retainer of $3,500.

June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)

These expenses are allocated on a pro rata basis to each Portfolio of
the Trust according to its respective net assets. The Trust pays no
compensation directly to any Trustee or any other officer who is
affiliated with the Administrator, all of whom receive remuneration for
their services to the Trust from the Administrator or its affiliates.

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(e) Expense Limitation Pursuant to the Expense Limitation Agreement,
PIMCO has agreed to waive a portion of the Portfolio’s Supervisory and
Administrative Fee, or reimburse the Portfolio, to the extent that the
Portfolio’s organizational expenses and pro rata share of Trustee Fees
exceed 0.0049%, the “Expense Limit” (calculated as a percentage of
the Portfolio’s average daily net assets attributable to each class). The
Expense Limitation Agreement will automatically renew for one-year
terms unless PIMCO provides written notice to the Trust at least
30 days prior to the end of the then current term.

10. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Under certain conditions, PIMCO may be reimbursed for these waived
amounts in future periods, not to exceed thirty-six months after the
waiver. The total recoverable amounts to PIMCO at June 30, 2017,
were as follows (amounts in thousands):
Expiring within
12 months

$

28

13-24 months

$

9

25-36 months

$

7

Total

$

44

(f) Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses Underlying PIMCO Fund
expenses, if any, will vary with changes in the expenses of the Underlying
PIMCO Funds, as well as the allocation of the Portfolio’s assets.
The expenses associated with investing in a fund of funds are generally
higher than those for mutual funds that do not invest in other mutual
funds. The cost of investing in a fund of funds will generally be higher
than the cost of investing in a mutual fund that invests directly in
individual stocks and bonds. By investing in a fund of funds, an investor
will indirectly bear fees and expenses charged by Underlying PIMCO
Funds in addition to the Portfolio’s direct fees and expenses. In
addition, the use of a fund of funds structure could affect the timing,
amount and character of distributions to the shareholders and may
therefore increase the amount of taxes payable by shareholders.

The Adviser, Administrator, and Distributor are related parties. Fees
paid to these parties are disclosed in Note 8, Fees and Expenses, and
the accrued related party fee amounts are disclosed on the Statement
of Assets and Liabilities.

Under the Trust’s organizational documents, each Trustee, officer,
employee or other agent of the Trust (including the Trust’s investment
manager) is indemnified, to the extent permitted by the Act, against
certain liabilities that may arise out of performance of their duties to
the Portfolio. Additionally, in the normal course of business, the
Portfolio enters into contracts that contain a variety of indemnification
clauses. The Portfolio’s maximum exposure under these arrangements
is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be made
against the Portfolio that have not yet occurred. However, the Portfolio
has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts.

11. PURCHASES AND SALES OF SECURITIES
The length of time the Portfolio has held a particular security is not
generally a consideration in investment decisions. A change in the
securities held by the Portfolio is known as “portfolio turnover.” The
Portfolio may engage in frequent and active trading of portfolio
securities to achieve its investment objective, particularly during periods
of volatile market movements. High portfolio turnover may involve
correspondingly greater transaction costs to the Portfolio, including
brokerage commissions or dealer mark-ups and other transaction costs
on the sale of securities and reinvestments in other securities. Such
sales may also result in realization of taxable capital gains, including
short-term capital gains (which are generally taxed at ordinary income
tax rates). The transaction costs and tax effects associated with
portfolio turnover may adversely affect the Portfolio’s performance. The
portfolio turnover rates are reported in the Financial Highlights.
Purchases and sales of securities (excluding short-term investments) for the
period ended June 30, 2017, were as follows (amounts in thousands†):
U.S. Government/Agency
Purchases

PIMCO has contractually agreed, through May 1, 2018, to reduce its
Investment Advisory Fee to the extent that the Underlying PIMCO Fund
expenses attributable to Investment Advisory Fees and Supervisory and
Administrative Fees exceed 0.69% of the total assets invested in
Underlying PIMCO Funds. PIMCO may recoup these waivers and
reimbursements for a period not exceeding three years, provided that
total expenses, including such recoupment, do not exceed the annual
expense limit. The waivers are reflected on the Statements of Operations
as a component of Waiver and/or Reimbursement by PIMCO. During the
period ended June 30, 2017, the Portfolio waived $2,757.

$
†

0

All Other

Sales

Purchases

$

$

0

7,378

Sales

$

4,920

A zero balance may reflect actual amounts rounding to less than one thousand.
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12. SHARES OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST
The Portfolio may issue an unlimited number of shares of beneficial interest with a $0.001 par value. Changes in shares of beneficial interest were
as follows (shares and amounts in thousands):
Six Months Ended
06/30/2017
Shares

Receipts for shares sold
Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class
Issued as reinvestment of distributions
Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class
Cost of shares redeemed
Institutional Class
Administrative Class
Advisor Class
Net increase (decrease) resulting from Portfolio
share transactions

1
304
78

Amount

$

Year Ended
12/31/2016
Shares

Amount

5
2,644
686

1
124
814

$

1
7
13

12
64
111

4
11
22

30
91
177

(37)
(61)
(104)

(328)
(532)
(905)

(15)
(502)
(545)

(117)
(4,147)
(4,445)

202

$ 1,757

(86)

$

9
1,022
6,681

(699)

As of June 30, 2017, three shareholders each owned 10% or more of the Portfolio’s total outstanding shares comprising 91% of the Portfolio.

13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS
The Portfolio is not named as a defendant in any material litigation or
arbitration proceedings and is not aware of any material litigation or
claim pending or threatened against it.
The foregoing speaks only as of the date of the preparation of this report.

14. FEDERAL INCOME TAX MATTERS
The Portfolio intends to qualify as a regulated investment company
under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) and
distribute all of its taxable income and net realized gains, if applicable,
to shareholders. Accordingly, no provision for Federal income taxes has
been made.

which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized
tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months.
The Portfolio, through the Underlying PIMCO Funds, may gain exposure
to the commodities markets primarily through index-linked notes, and
may invest in other commodity-linked derivative investments, including
commodity swap agreements, options, futures contracts, options on
futures contracts and foreign funds investing in similar commoditylinked derivatives.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Adviser has reviewed the Portfolio’s
tax positions for all open tax years. As of June 30, 2017, the Portfolio
has recorded no liability for net unrecognized tax benefits relating to
uncertain income tax positions it has taken or expects to take in future
tax returns.

One of the requirements for favorable tax treatment as a regulated
investment company under the Code is that the Portfolio must derive at
least 90% of its gross income from certain qualifying sources of
income. The IRS has issued a revenue ruling which holds that income
derived from commodity index-linked swaps is not qualifying income
under Subchapter M of the Code. The IRS has also issued private letter
rulings in which the IRS specifically concluded that income from certain
commodity index- linked notes is qualifying income. The IRS has also
issued private rulings in which the IRS specifically concluded that
income derived from an investment in a subsidiary, which invests
primarily in commodity-linked swaps, will also be qualifying income.
Based on the reasoning in such rulings, the Portfolio will continue to
seek to gain exposure to the commodity markets through indirect
investments in a Subsidiary.

The Portfolio files U.S. tax returns. While the statute of limitations
remains open to examine the Portfolio’s U.S. tax returns filed for the
fiscal years ending in 2013-2016, no examinations are in progress or
anticipated at this time. The Portfolio is not aware of any tax positions for

It should be noted, however, that the IRS currently has suspended the
issuance of such rulings pending further review. In addition, the IRS
also recently issued a revenue procedure, which states that the IRS will
not in the future issue private letter rulings that would require a

The Portfolio may be subject to local withholding taxes, including those
imposed on realized capital gains. Any applicable foreign capital gains
tax is accrued daily based upon net unrealized gains, and may be
payable following the sale of any applicable investments.
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determination of whether an asset (such as a commodity index-linked
note) is a “security” under the 1940 Act.

event that the Commodity Subsidiary’s taxable gains exceed its losses
and other deductible items during a taxable year, the net gain will pass
through to the Underlying PIMCO Fund as income for Federal income
tax purposes.

There can be no assurance that the IRS will not change its position that
income derived from commodity-linked notes and wholly-owned
subsidiaries is qualifying income. Furthermore, the tax treatment of
commodity-linked notes, other commodity-linked derivatives, and the
Portfolio’s investments in the Commodity Subsidiary may otherwise be
adversely affected by future legislation, court decisions, Treasury
Regulations and/or guidance issued by the IRS. Such developments
could affect the character, timing and/or amount of the Portfolio’s
taxable income or any distributions made by the Portfolio or result in
the inability of the Portfolio to operate as described in its Prospectus.

Shares of the Portfolio currently are sold to segregated asset accounts
(“Separate Accounts”) of insurance companies that fund variable
annuity contracts and variable life insurance policies (“Variable
Contracts”). Please refer to the prospectus for the Separate Account
and Variable Contract for information regarding Federal income tax
treatment of distributions to the Separate Account.
Under the Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2010,
a Portfolio is permitted to carry forward any new capital losses for an
unlimited period. Additionally, such capital losses that are carried
forward will retain their character as either short-term or long-term
capital losses rather than being considered all short-term under
previous law.

If, during a taxable year, the Underlying PIMCO Fund’s Commodity
Subsidiary’s taxable losses (and other deductible items) exceed its
income and gains, the net loss will not pass through to the Underlying
PIMCO Fund as a deductible amount for income tax purposes. In the

As of its last fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Portfolio had the following post-effective capital losses with no expiration (amounts
in thousands):
PIMCO All Asset All Authority Portfolio

Short-Term

Long-Term

$ 542

$ 667

As of June 30, 2017, the aggregate cost and the net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments for Federal income tax purposes are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

(1)

Federal
Tax Cost

Aggregate
Gross
Unrealized
Appreciation

Aggregate
Gross
Unrealized
(Depreciation)

Net Unrealized
Appreciation
(Depreciation)(1)

$ 17,148

$ 208

$ (605)

$ (397)

Primary differences, if any, between book and tax net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) are attributable to wash sale loss deferrals for federal income tax purposes.
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Glossary: (abbreviations that may be used in the preceding statements)
Currency Abbreviations:
USD (or $) United States Dollar
Other Abbreviations:
TBA
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